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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We now open for

          3  today, November the 16th. I have a statement here

          4  for this meeting.

          5                 Okay, today's meeting is the status

          6  of the Department of Buildings, Department of

          7  Housing, Preservation and Development, and the New

          8  York City Housing Authority since the attack on the

          9  World Trade Center.

         10                 The Council Committees are conducting

         11  a hearing to ascertain the impact of the September

         12  the 11th, 2001 World Trade Center attack on the

         13  agencies under the scope of their jurisdictions.

         14                 These hearings, including today's,

         15  will examine agency responses to the unanticipated

         16  demand created by this emergency, the effect of new

         17  budgetary constraints and the impact of current

         18  events on the agency's ability to achieve its

         19  overall mandate.

         20                 Taken together, these hearings will

         21  seek to understand some of the fundamental issues

         22  for City residents and businesses, both now and into

         23  the future, including safety, accessibility, and the

         24  provision of governmental services.

         25                 Most of the agencies have been
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          2  required to create a plan to significantly reduce

          3  their budgets in response to projected budget

          4  shortfalls.

          5                 The Mayor has required all

          6  non-uniformed agencies, except the Board of

          7  Education, to reserve 15 percent of their budget

          8  pursuant to Section 106-(b) of the City Charter to

          9  create a reserve.

         10                 The events of September 11th

         11  exacerbated the problems the City was already

         12  experiencing as a result of a waning economy.

         13                 Prior to September the 11th, in

         14  response to economic conditions, the Department of

         15  Buildings, the Department of Buildings, the

         16  Department of Housing Preservation and Development,

         17  and New York City Housing Authority had been asked

         18  to repair eight percent reduction plans for their

         19  City-funded budget.

         20                 Subsequent to September 11th, a

         21  request was revised to require the agencies to

         22  submit a reduction plan to reflect a 15 percent

         23  decrease in City funds.

         24                 The attack of September the 11th

         25  placed acute demands on City agencies. DOB, HPD and
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          2  NYCHA each responded to some of these demands.

          3  Today's hearing is to learn what has been done in

          4  each of these agencies, what new demands they

          5  anticipate, the status of the City Housing and

          6  Buildings in light of new challenges and the effects

          7  of proposed budget cuts.

          8                 Specifically with regards to DOB,

          9  there are questions as to what role the agency has

         10  taken to ensure the buildings in and around the tip

         11  of Lower Manhattan are safe, what, if any,

         12  coordination with other agencies occurred, in order

         13  to ensure safety, and what are the status of DOB's

         14  relationship with the Fire Department in light of

         15  the merger of functions pursued by the Mayor.

         16                 The Committee is also very concerned

         17  about the DOB plan to reduce their budget by 15

         18  percent.

         19                 HPD, in part, because of the agency's

         20  location, functioned as a relief station in the

         21  early days of the emergency. A role for which they

         22  should be applauded.

         23                 Early in the emergency there was an

         24  expectation that the City would get numerous

         25  requests for emergency housing, and HPD mobilized to
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          2  help in this effort, as they would when there are

          3  fires that dislocate families.

          4                 According to information provided to

          5  the staff, this demand failed to materialize at that

          6  point. However, newspapers currently report requests

          7  for emergency shelter, which are usually perceived

          8  as the responsibility of the Human Resources

          9  Administration are way up. It is unclear if these

         10  requests are linked to the disaster that directly

         11  affect families who have lost income because of a

         12  job loss at WTC, or whether HPD is or should be

         13  helping to place these additional families.

         14                 As much as HPD's funding is not from

         15  City funds, we are less concerned about the larger

         16  HPD programs than we might otherwise be because they

         17  will not be likely targets of decreases anywhere

         18  near the 15 percent cut.

         19                 We are particularly concerned about

         20  anti-eviction, legal services and community

         21  consultant, neighborhood preservation consultant

         22  programs funded by the Council.

         23                 Another major issue is the Mayor's

         24  Initiative to build and renovate between 10,000 and

         25  12,000 units of housing over the next four years.
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          2                 At the Executive Budget hearing in

          3  May, Commissioner Perine explained that this

          4  initiative was to funded through a mixture of public

          5  and private funds.

          6                 The public sources, including City

          7  capital funding, Battery Park City revenue and

          8  Housing Development Corporation private activity

          9  bonds financing.

         10                 Given the pressures on the City's

         11  budget resulting from the destruction of the World

         12  Trade Center, coupled with the downturn in the

         13  economy, we question whether funding will be

         14  sufficient to move forward in the Mayor's plan and

         15  whether any of the funding sources generally used

         16  for housing will now be dedicated to the building in

         17  Lower Manhattan, instead of being used for lower and

         18  middle income housing; for example, CDBGs, Community

         19  Block Grants or Private Activity Bonds.

         20                 Similarly, most of NYCHA's funding is

         21  not from the City. We hope to hear from NYCHA

         22  regarding their overall budget, how they are

         23  planning to absorb a 15 percent City reduction,

         24  responses, if any, to heighten requests for housing,

         25  and changes to the housing priorities.
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          2                 Also, Section 8 recipients are having

          3  problems finding an apartment in light of the acute

          4  housing shortage.

          5                 That statement having been read, I

          6  don't know who or if the Administration is here?

          7                 HPD is here?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  HPD, if you

         10  will have a seat at the table. Identify yourself,

         11  and any members of your staff accompanying you, we

         12  would be happy to hear your testimony responses.

         13                 You have received prior copies of our

         14  concerns; am I correct?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So, it's

         17  reasonable to assume that you will comment on many

         18  of them in your opening remarks?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I

         20  think so.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, thank you.

         22                 Identify yourself, please.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Good

         24  morning. My name is James Gardella, I'm an Assistant

         25  Commissioner at the Department of Housing,
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          2  Preservation and Development. With me is Associate

          3  Commissioner Vito Mustaciuolo, and Director of

          4  Operations for our Code Enforcement Division, Renee

          5  Pay.

          6                 I have a statement that I will read

          7  and then of course if there is questions, we will

          8  take them.

          9                 Good morning, Chairman Spigner, and

         10  members of the Council's Housing and Buildings

         11  Committee. My name is James Gardella, Assistant

         12  Commissioner at the New York City Department of

         13  Housing Preservation and Development.

         14                 On behalf of Commissioner Perine and

         15  the Agency, I am pleased to be here today to brief

         16  you on the activities of HPD, both on September 11th

         17  and during its aftermath.

         18                 I'm pleased to inform you that all

         19  core functions of the Department of Housing

         20  Preservation and Development were maintained and

         21  continued unabated every day since the disaster

         22  struck on September 11th.

         23                 HPD's Charter-mandated duties with

         24  respect to Housing Code Enforcement, the management

         25  of City-owned residential buildings, housing stock
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          2  preservation and anti-abandonment assistance, urban

          3  renewal planning and other agency functions were

          4  maintained.

          5                 This effort was clearly facilitated

          6  by the fact that HPD operates an extensive field

          7  network through our Code Enforcement offices located

          8  in Upper Manhattan, Arthur Avenue in the Bronx,

          9  downtown and East New York and Brooklyn, Queens

         10  Boulevard and Staten Island, Borough Hall.

         11                 The Department was also able to

         12  deploy staff to and augment efforts at other offices

         13  of anti-abandonment and planning in four of the five

         14  boroughs.

         15                 HPD staff, and senior and core staff

         16  established our headquarters building at 100 Gold

         17  Street in Lower Manhattan as our command center. As

         18  a relief center for rescue workers, staffed around

         19  the clock by HPD employees, and we contributed

         20  senior staff to the Citywide Command Center

         21  operation.

         22                 Through an extensive phone networking

         23  system utilizing Deputy Commissioners, Assistant

         24  Commissioners, Directors and others, staff was

         25  contacted at home and work assignments and work
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          2  locations were developed.

          3                 In the immediate aftermath of the

          4  attack and specific to Lower Manhattan, HPD took the

          5  following actions: 610 residential buildings were

          6  identified in the original FEMA impact zone, south

          7  of Chambers, west of Broadway, both open and closed

          8  zones; 81 residential buildings were identified in

          9  the original closed zone, exclusive of the 21

         10  residential buildings and projects in Battery Park

         11  City; 11 residential buildings remain in the most

         12  recently updated closed zone.

         13                 HPD enforcement services staff

         14  inspected the residential buildings outside of the

         15  original frozen zone.

         16                 Enforcement Services inspectors and

         17  Division of Architect Construction and Engineering

         18  structural engineers made 114 attempts to inspect

         19  the 81 residential buildings within the original

         20  frozen zone. Thirty-eight attempts were unsuccessful

         21  due to no access issues.

         22                 Of the residential buildings outside

         23  the original frozen zone, only one building was

         24  found to have structural damage; however, it is

         25  unknown whether this was an existing condition prior
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          2  to September 11th.

          3                 HPD enforcement services staff, along

          4  with the Department of Sanitation staff, assisted

          5  the Department of Health in cleaning out food

          6  establishments within the impact zone. In total, 50

          7  food establishments were visited.

          8                 HPD staffed the Mayor's 24-hour World

          9  Trade Center General Assistance Hot Line at 43rd and

         10  Broadway, from the time it was first set up to when

         11  it was recently discontinued.

         12                 Four HPD staff members were present

         13  seven days a week, serving in eight-hour shifts, to

         14  field calls regarding World Trade Center-related

         15  questions, to route inquiries to the appropriate

         16  agencies and individuals and to give information

         17  regarding mass transit, traffic and pedestrian

         18  access zones, school openings and hospitals.

         19                 Of the owners and managing agents of

         20  the 81 residential buildings in the original frozen

         21  zone, owners and agents of 47 buildings were

         22  contacted by phone.

         23                 Over the phone, HPD Division of

         24  Anti-Abandonment staff surveyed building owners,

         25  managing agents, about any World Trade
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          2  Center-related building damage, and obtained

          3  information concerning their insurance coverage, the

          4  location of their tenants and the need for mortgage

          5  assistance.

          6                 Division of Anti-Abandonment staff

          7  referred owners and managing agents to FEMA for

          8  general assistance.

          9                 FEMA also offered assistance to

         10  commercial tenants through small loans made by the

         11  SBA.

         12                 Anti-abandonment staff referred

         13  owners that needed mortgage assistance to Fannie

         14  Mae, and they linked owners and managing agents with

         15  the New York State Energy Research and Development

         16  Authority who helped locate structural engineers and

         17  assisted owners in the purchase of energy-efficient

         18  doors and windows.

         19                 All owners and managing agents were

         20  directed to the 80 Centre Street Disaster Center for

         21  further assistance.

         22                 The owners and managing agents of the

         23  remaining 35 buildings in the frozen zone were sent

         24  outreach letters offering HPD's assistance and

         25  giving an HPD number to call.
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          2                 The outreach mailings also included a

          3  building owner Fact Sheet with FEMA, Fannie Mae, and

          4  RSA phone numbers. In fact, I have a copy of that

          5  Fact Sheet which I will give to the guard in the

          6  course of the morning.

          7                 The Fact Sheet instructed owners of

          8  co-ops, condos and rental buildings to contact their

          9  insurance carriers and attorneys to be aware of

         10  insurance coverage and liability issues.

         11                 All of the outreach mailings sent to

         12  owners, managing agents, who could not be contacted

         13  by phone, were successfully delivered.

         14                 HPD began staffing the 80 Centre

         15  Street Disaster Assistance Center as soon as it

         16  opened.

         17                 HPD Division of Tenant Resources

         18  staff have been accepting Section 8 applications for

         19  residents and workers affected by the World Trade

         20  Center.

         21                 Division of Tenant Resources staff

         22  are currently processing 352 Section 8 applications

         23  from those affected New Yorkers.

         24                 Tenant and Owner Fact Sheets are

         25  being distributed at 80 Centre Street. The Owner
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          2  Fact Sheets, which were included in outreach

          3  mailings, have numbers for FEMA, Fannie Mae, and

          4  RSA.

          5                 The tenant Fact Sheets provides

          6  information on determining one's occupancy status

          7  and one's respective tenancy rights.

          8                 The Fact Sheet also includes

          9  information on obtaining legal advice, withholding

         10  rent, lease termination, and DHCR's contact

         11  information.

         12                 HPD resumed Housing Operations and

         13  normal staff deployment with functioning telephones,

         14  electricity and computers at 100 Gold Street on

         15  Tuesday, September 18th. The agency had air

         16  monitoring and testing conducted and completed. The

         17  air was found acceptable.

         18                 Our entire HVAC system was cleaned by

         19  an outside contractor using HEPA vacuuming and wipes

         20  and filters were replaced.

         21                 100 Gold Street continues to be

         22  tested for air quality on a regular basis.

         23                 Before employees returned, the

         24  building was tested extensively for structural

         25  soundness, safety and cleanliness.
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          2                 We have made regular walk-throughs of

          3  every fire exit, where old heavy doors were found,

          4  new custom-made fire doors were ordered to replace

          5  them.

          6                 Until the new doors arrive, we have

          7  opened the existing doors that were heavy and

          8  removed their locks and doorknobs so that they stay

          9  open.

         10                 We checked every emergency light in

         11  the fire exit, we have detected a few shorts and our

         12  electrician is repairing them.

         13                 The agency continues to monitor our

         14  fire safety system to ensure that they provide the

         15  highest level of safety.

         16                 We are also working with our fire

         17  safety consultants to evaluate our safety and

         18  evacuation procedures.

         19                 The building was cleaned, the

         20  elevators were tested.

         21                 In the aftermath of the disaster, the

         22  agency recognized both a need to provide ongoing

         23  assistance to staff, and the desire of HPD staff to

         24  do even more than they had already done.

         25                 In recognition that HPD staff lost 88
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          2  colleagues, friends and family members in the

          3  attack, the agency has offered counseling by

          4  professionals, trained in Post-Traumatic Stress

          5  Disorder, to employees.

          6                 Hundreds of staff members have

          7  availed themselves of this counseling and join

          8  together to support the relief effort.

          9                 HPD staff have donated and raised

         10  $19,500 for contribution to the Mayor's Twin Towers

         11  Fund, to the FDNY and NYPD's widows and orphans

         12  funds, and to HPD staff who lost an immediate family

         13  member.

         14                 However, by far the effort that HPD

         15  is most proud of in the immediate aftermath of the

         16  disaster was our utilization of our headquarters

         17  building to directly serve New Yorkers.

         18                 We didn't set out to run a relief

         19  center at 100 Gold Street. First we gave aid and

         20  comfort to the terrified pedestrians who took refuge

         21  in our building after escaping collapse of the World

         22  Trade Center.

         23                 As the day wore on, we gave sanctuary

         24  to those released from Beacon Hospital, across from

         25  the street from us, but unable to return home.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Finally, as night approached, we

          3  provided coffee, a place to clean up and a quiet

          4  place to rest for the exhausted firemen, police and

          5  other rescue workers who found their way to our

          6  door.

          7                 By the second day, we were operating

          8  a full-service relief center that was clean and

          9  orderly, and staffed solely by HPD volunteers around

         10  the clock.

         11                 We had 5,500 visits from Fire,

         12  Police, Sanitation, Utility and Medical personnel

         13  who were grateful for a place to sleep, shower, eat,

         14  change clothes and rest.

         15                 Rather than elaborate on this relief

         16  effort, I would like to simply read to you a letter

         17  that was sent to Commissioner Perine, dated November

         18  1, 2001, from a woman who was working in Lower

         19  Manhattan on September 11th.

         20                 "I am writing this letter to express

         21  my heartfelt appreciation for the kindness of your

         22  employees shown to the public on September 11th,

         23  2001.

         24                 I work at 195 Broadway, and on that

         25  horrible morning I was on Fulton and Nassau Streets
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          2  when the first tower collapsed. I ran down subway

          3  stairs and exited onto a street, not being able to

          4  see where I was due to the cement cloud.

          5                 I was with a fellow employee and we

          6  ended up in the lobby of 100 Gold Street.

          7                 Your employees gave out water and

          8  masks, and a woman with a calming and confident

          9  voice announced that we were in a safe building and

         10  we were welcome to stay there.

         11                 I was so relieved to hear the word

         12  'safe'. We were able to go to your back offices and

         13  use the bathrooms. We were still in your building

         14  when the second tower collapsed, and then we helped

         15  people coming off the streets by bringing them

         16  water.

         17                 I was very grateful to be off the

         18  street at a time when I was so frightened. I know

         19  that there were buildings downtown that locked their

         20  lobby doors and allowed no one in. We stayed at your

         21  offices until noon and then we walked over the

         22  Brooklyn Bridge.

         23                 Thanks so much to your employees for

         24  showing such compassion to strangers, I am so

         25  grateful."
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          2                 All of us in government so rarely

          3  find thank you letters in our mail, that on behalf

          4  of Commissioner Perine and all HPD staff, I'm very

          5  glad that we got the opportunity to share that

          6  letter with you today.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, and I want

          9  to thank you, too, Commissioner Gardella. Were you

         10  in the building on September the 11th?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I

         12  was not. I was at a meeting out of the building.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That was quite a

         14  morning. Quite a morning.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: A pretty good

         17  report. Let me ask you, though, how does your agency

         18  intend to implement the 15 percent reduction in

         19  expenditures requested by the Mayor. Do you have any

         20  comments on that?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Our

         22  budget people are looking at that kind of data, as

         23  well as we're putting together a list of costs

         24  associated with September 11th and its aftermath,

         25  and we will be submitting both of those things to
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          2  OMB, you know, at the proper time, but I don't have

          3  an answer for that for you today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Have you any

          5  substantial increases in costs that you've incurred

          6  as a result of your involvement as of September the

          7  11th? Have you itemized them?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          9  That's something our budget people are putting

         10  together, that itemization of something we're

         11  putting together.

         12                 The gist of my testimony, and the

         13  fact that I have our Operations Chiefs here with us

         14  who are part of the folks who put themselves in

         15  harm's way that day, is an indication that basically

         16  we put most of the agency's effort into continuing

         17  our services, continuing to answer heat and hot

         18  water complaints, continuing to provide all the

         19  services we provided on September 10th, and now

         20  we've got our budget folks beginning to assemble the

         21  kind of hard numbers for some of these additional

         22  services that I talked about, like going from food

         23  service door to food service door along with the

         24  Department of Health, it's not normally an HPD

         25  function.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's correct.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          4  That's part of what we're putting a price on, but I

          5  don't have it for you today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You don't have

          7  the answer to any budget-related questions.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I

          9  don't.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If I could ask

         11  you the question of whether fund sources, such as

         12  the Battery Park City revenues on housing

         13  development corporation, that you are not in the

         14  position to answer any of those questions?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         17                 Council Member Boyland.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Good morning.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Good

         20  morning.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Hi, Jim. How

         22  are you?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I'm

         24  fine, Council Member.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And we'll get
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          2  back to that question on the 15 percent cut. I think

          3  that is what people really wanted to hear in terms

          4  of the two percent or the 15 percent at HPD. We're

          5  just hoping that those services don't really -- when

          6  we look at the effects of most of the cuts that are

          7  going through the City, I think everyone is really

          8  being hit hard, especially with the agencies that

          9  look at what the local communities are doing, so we

         10  just hope that you will be able to consult with us

         11  and we will be able to work with you so we're not

         12  sort of hit very hard in our local communities.

         13                 Let me ask you a question on your

         14  report.

         15                 Six-hundred and ten residential

         16  buildings were identified, 81 residential buildings

         17  in the closed, frozen zone, 11 buildings also. I say

         18  there's a number of buildings that were identified

         19  through HPD during the World Trade Center disaster;

         20  were you able to relocate these families, residents?

         21  Did you relocate them? Because you go on to say that

         22  you are offering Section 8, has there been a process

         23  in which you are moving them out, or are they still

         24  remaining there, the family?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: That
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          2  identification was done to a great extent to enable

          3  FEMA and the red cross to find -- you know, there's

          4  been a lot of efforts in recent years to make Lower

          5  Manhattan a 24-hour community. There's a lot more

          6  residential than they're used to being, and, yet,

          7  there wasn't exactly -- nobody could put their hands

          8  on data to say, well, where are these new

          9  residential buildings. We were able to identify

         10  them, and then FEMA and the Red Cross stepped in and

         11  helped with relocations.

         12                 So they have been doing that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Are these

         14  families -- just looking at that, and maybe if you

         15  can tell me the answer, or I'm sure you checked with

         16  FEMA, are these families back? Because I know of

         17  several families that lived in Battery Park have now

         18  moved to Brooklyn, have relocated. We have had

         19  several hearings in this Council on air quality. A

         20  lot of these families have children that were

         21  asthmatic and they have since relocated to outer

         22  boroughs; have you done a follow-up on some of these

         23  families, or are you just leaving that up to FEMA?

         24  Where does your --

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:
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          2  Well, basically, specifically Battery Park, you're

          3  mentioning private buildings, they're not City-owned

          4  buildings.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: And

          7  basically those residents have made their own

          8  choices. I mean, I happened to be -- I have a doctor

          9  in Battery Park, I was over there the other day,

         10  things look, from on the street level and from the

         11  outside look surprisingly normal to me, but I

         12  wouldn't know about the occupancy of those private

         13  buildings. People obviously are making their own

         14  independent choices.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I'm sure a

         16  lot of them had home-owners' insurance on their

         17  properties, but for the families, the income level,

         18  I thought that there would be some input from HPD.

         19                 But then you go on to say that you

         20  are offering Section 8 applications. Who are you

         21  offering the Section 8 applications to?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: We

         23  amended our Section 8 plan to assist people. There

         24  is now a category in the Section 8 plan to assist

         25  people who lost a family member in the Trade Center,
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          2  or who lost their job, as a result of the September

          3  11th attack.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: And

          6  it's those 352. We have amended our plan to have

          7  1,000 Section 8 vouchers for that purpose, and we're

          8  at the process, we're processing 352 of those now.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, that

         10  was a concern. The firemen, the policemen, the

         11  workers in the particular buildings.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         13  Anyone who lost a family member, anyone who lost

         14  more than -- I said a job, but I think it's more

         15  than 25 percent of it, it's a little more liberal

         16  than that, I think it's more than 25 percent of

         17  their family income as a result of a job loss

         18  related to the Trade Center can go to 80 Centre

         19  Street, and that's where we're actively processing

         20  Section 8 vouchers.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         22                 My last question was in regards to

         23  the 15 percent cut, but I think we will have to come

         24  back to that on our next visit, on your next visit

         25  to us, hopefully -- will it be within this
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          2  Administration, Archie?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I think this is

          4  the last time we will see Jim Gardella in this --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Well, I

          6  always see Jim. He sings "do wop" in my

          7  neighborhood, so. He's a wonderful singer. So, I'll

          8  see Jim very soon.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         10  You're very kind, Councilwoman.

         11                 Mr. Chairman, I hope you'll control

         12  your enthusiasm about that last time stuff.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So, we'll sit

         14  down, we'll have an opportunity. I will be here, and

         15  I saw Council Member -- Leroy was here, and Mr.

         16  Connelly was here, so we will be here in the next

         17  Administration to do a lot of the follow-up.

         18                 Under the tutelage of Council Member

         19  Spigner we've learned a great deal these last four

         20  years, so we will continue on.

         21                 I also would like to recognize a

         22  friend of mine, Larry Hirst, he walked in the room,

         23  from HUD.

         24                 Hi, Larry. Welcome. I hope you're

         25  learning a lot from Jim.
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          2                 All right, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          4  Nelson, who will also be here in the next Council.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: God willing.

          6  God willing.

          7                 Good morning.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Good

          9  morning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: What's the

         11  status of the Mayor's initiative to build, renovate

         12  between 10 to 12,000 units over the next four years?

         13  Is this totally altered now?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         15  Well, first of all, I know from my desk, because

         16  everything that gets submitted, every rehab or new

         17  construction project that gets submitted to the

         18  Council comes to me first, that the rehab and the

         19  development programs of HPD are fully functioning.

         20  We will have in two weeks at Councilman Linares'

         21  Subcommittee, I will have some 40 plus projects on,

         22  so they're clearly functioning.

         23                 If you are referring to an initiative

         24  that the Administration announced to build and

         25  renovate even more, there were, to my knowledge, two
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          2  parts of that initiative, and one involved

          3  legislation being adopted by the Council that, from

          4  the point of view of the Administration, helped to

          5  eliminate duplication - duplication, corruption,

          6  feather-bedding in construction practices. That was

          7  sort of the other shoe of that extra effort and I

          8  don't believe that legislation has been forthcoming

          9  thus far.

         10                 But the basic answer is that we have

         11  never had less, in the last 20 years we've never had

         12  less City-owned buildings, we've never had less

         13  buildings in City hands for failure to pay taxes. We

         14  have gotten back to private hands thousands of

         15  buildings and many thousands of units, and that

         16  effort is continuing, and the Council, as I said,

         17  will see some 40 some projects in two weeks.

         18                 This afternoon at 1:00 I have 20

         19  projects on Councilman Linares' Subcommittee, so HPD

         20  is fully functioning.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Approximately

         22  in the last eight years, is there a ballpark

         23  percentage how much has been privatized, no longer

         24  in the City hands?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I
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          2  just can't rattle them off.

          3                 We're down to under 8,000 apartments

          4  in City ownership in buildings that were taken, and

          5  I think, you know, certainly within the last eight

          6  years it hit at least 30,000, it probably was more

          7  units. So, quite a bit.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Are you

          9  getting more Section 8 vouchers? And do you have a

         10  problem finding apartments for people who aren't

         11  Section 8?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: We

         13  are getting those requests related, directly related

         14  to the Trade Center. As I said, we have 352 that

         15  have been processed so far. I'm sure we will get

         16  more as people learn to go to 80 Centre Street and

         17  things like that.

         18                 I don't believe we've had a problem

         19  with apartments. I mean, it's always, again, that's

         20  always an issue, but as far as I know everything is

         21  working out.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Do you have an

         23  idea how many people in this City do receive Section

         24  8's?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I
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          2  don't.

          3                 I could get back to you with that,

          4  Councilman.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It's not your

          6  department.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: It's

          8  not something that I know.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         12  Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         16  Council member.

         17                 Commissioner Gardella, you talked

         18  about food establishments; what role does HPD --

         19  that's out of your job title, right? You said the

         20  food establishments were visited?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         22  Right.

         23                 Commissioner Mastaciuolo, do you want

         24  to talk about the food establishments?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What role does
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          2  HPD, by any stretch, conceivably cover the

          3  inspection of food establishments?

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

          5  Mr. Chairman, our involvement was not necessarily

          6  with respect to the inspection, but rather to

          7  providing access to the restaurants.

          8                 We have maintenance, mechanic staff

          9  and contractors who can provide access --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It wasn't about

         11  the quality of the food?

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         13  That's Department of Health, right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Oh, okay.

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         16  We just merely allowed them access to the restaurant

         17  establishments, and then secured the location after.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Does HPD, as

         19  well as DOB, have the capacity to determine whether

         20  a building is structurally unsound?

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         22  The Department of Buildings make that determination.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, it says

         24  here, you said the building was found to have

         25  structural damage.
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

          3  Right. Actually, what we do in the course of our

          4  inspections, if we find what we consider to be a

          5  structural defect, we'll make an immediate referral

          6  to the Department of Buildings.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. So, the

          8  Department of Buildings, that's their category.

          9                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         10  Right.

         11                 That building actually was on

         12  Mulberry Street, like near Canal Street, so the

         13  likelihood of the World Trade Center impacting that

         14  building was minimal.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         16                 And your entire staff was back to

         17  work on September the 18th?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         19  Well, actually, that's when 100 Gold Street resumed

         20  normal operations, but the staff were working every

         21  day.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The entire

         23  staff.

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         25  But they were redeployed to borough offices, to the
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          2  outer offices.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

          4  Commissioner Gardella, and your associates, I want

          5  to thank you for a very timely and informative

          6  update. And I do think there may be other issues

          7  that we have to resolve before this Council expires.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          9  Thank you.

         10                 As you know, Mr. Chairman, I never

         11  volunteer anything, but since you pointed out that

         12  this is probably the last time that we'll be in this

         13  relationship at the microphone, I would just like to

         14  take the opportunity to say how fair the entire

         15  Committee has been to HPD, and to me, every time

         16  that we have been here, and particularly note the

         17  gentlemanly way that I was always treated by the

         18  Chairman, and the way the Chairman always sought to

         19  shed light, rather than heat, on the kind of issues

         20  that we don't always agree on. So, I'm very pleased

         21  to have had this opportunity to work with you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you. We

         23  mutually agree.

         24                 Okay, that concludes this portion of

         25  the hearing on Housing Preservation and Development.
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          2                 The next agency is Department of

          3  Buildings. I see them making their way to the table.

          4                 Hopefully you gentlemen have a

          5  prepared statement, which we will be happy to

          6  review.

          7                 Okay, if you will identify yourselves

          8  and the capacity you are here, we will be happy to,

          9  as always, receive your testimony and presentation.

         10                 MR. TOPPING: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 My name is Mark Topping, Chief of

         12  Staff for the Department of Buildings. With me today

         13  is David Nussbaum, Director of Community Affairs and

         14  Intergovernmental, and Robert Iulo, Director of

         15  Citywide Inspections.

         16                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         17  speak to you and the Committee today with regard to

         18  Department of Buildings' response to the September

         19  11th terrorist attack on the World Trade Center.

         20                 While we're setting this up, I'll

         21  start my presentation.

         22                 I wanted to touch on five points, the

         23  first being DOB's related jurisdiction, the second

         24  being our immediate response to the events of

         25  September 11th.
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          2                 The third being the impact on our

          3  operations and how we responded to that.

          4                 DOB's jurisdiction obviously falls

          5  pretty significantly with regard to the damage that

          6  was done in the downtown area. The first being

          7  structural safety and unsafe buildings. Obviously

          8  after the collapse there was a fair amount of damage

          9  that was done to peripheral buildings, and we needed

         10  to assess that.

         11                 The second related jurisdiction is

         12  building maintenance. This is somewhat related but

         13  it really has to do with the fact that we need to

         14  make sure that buildings are maintained in a safe

         15  manner.

         16                 Just a note on that, there are

         17  buildings not within New York -- within our

         18  jurisdiction, federal buildings, state buildings,

         19  that sort of thing.

         20                 And then secondly, public safety

         21  during construction and demolition operations. We do

         22  have to ensure that those operations happen in a

         23  safe manner so that any public or buildings

         24  surrounding these operations are not affected.

         25                 In terms of our immediate response to
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          2  the events of September 11th, I wanted to point to

          3  three areas, the first being our efforts to

          4  participate in the rescue and recovery operations.

          5                 The second, which is a major part of

          6  our efforts, was identifying the collateral damage

          7  in buildings surrounding the World Trade Center

          8  site, and then the third, which is always important,

          9  is coordinating with other agencies.

         10                 Immediately after the first collision

         11  of the planes into the World Trade Center our staff

         12  responded, and many of the staff were around the

         13  World Trade Center 7 building when the second plane

         14  hit the World Trade Center and obviously we were

         15  very concerned for the safety there.

         16                 Many of our staff are trained in

         17  emergency response. Many of our staff regularly

         18  respond to emergencies and participated in the

         19  efforts to help with the evacuation and respond to

         20  the situation.

         21                 In addition, many of our staff also

         22  participated in the rescue and the recovery efforts

         23  immediately after the collapse of the World Trade

         24  Center, this included consultation with regard to

         25  the safety of particular environments and of voids
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          2  that might have caused concern for rescue personnel,

          3  as well as just generally of participating in bucket

          4  brigades and the like.

          5                 In addition, we are regularly called

          6  upon by the Fire Department and other agencies on

          7  the site to do structural engineering as to debris

          8  removal and removal of large sections on the site

          9  where there may have been cause of concern for

         10  safety.

         11                 The second area where we had strong

         12  participation or actually DOB led, had a leadership

         13  role in terms of response to September 11th, was

         14  identifying collateral damage in buildings

         15  surrounding the site.

         16                 Obviously there was a lot of concern

         17  about debris that may have caused damage in

         18  buildings and the safety of those buildings.

         19                 Immediately after the events of

         20  September 11th, 13 teams were established, which

         21  included two inspectors, and one engineer or

         22  architect to go out and survey the immediate

         23  vicinity to the World Trade Center.

         24                 Not immediately, but over the next

         25  week, approximately, or over 400 buildings in Lower
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          2  Manhattan were eventually inspected to ensure the

          3  structural safety and no damage was causing any

          4  safety concerns.

          5                 The types of damage that they did

          6  find, included destroyed buildings, obviously

          7  partially collapsed buildings which were of obvious

          8  concern, there were about eight of those.

          9                 Buildings with structural damage

         10  where areas needed to be quartered off and

         11  situations needed to be addressed immediately, those

         12  were buildings that were particularly of concern for

         13  us.

         14                 And then buildings with superficial

         15  damage where cleaning was required. The superficial

         16  damage could have been broken windows, damage to

         17  facades, and that sort of thing.

         18                 Cleaning was especially important, as

         19  well, as much of the dust and debris that fell into

         20  the area, either would cause the hazard, the flying

         21  hazard in terms of debris coming off of roofs onto

         22  the street area, as these buildings were reoccupied,

         23  or debris potentially clogging roof drains which

         24  would have caused structural problems.

         25                 If you will see in the presentation,
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          2  there are some examples of the type of damage that

          3  we assessed and did a lot of inspections on and did

          4  consultations with owners and some of their

          5  emergency response agencies and personnel. Deutch

          6  Menk is included in there, the World Financial

          7  Center is included in there. There's a building

          8  there, an example of some of the superficial damage,

          9  that we inspected. And a picture of one of our teams

         10  that went out to inspect the buildings.

         11                 I would like to stop certainly on

         12  those teams. The teams provided significant support

         13  and really responded beyond the call of duty to this

         14  disaster. Our inspection squad estimates that they

         15  climbed over 10,000 flights of stairs as they needed

         16  to inspect every floor of every building, often when

         17  the power is out, and there were no elevator service

         18  to go check the roofs where there may have been roof

         19  damage from the collapse. So, I wanted to make

         20  special mention of their efforts.

         21                 In addition, we did some additional

         22  safety inspections that I would like to point out,

         23  we did some elevator safety sweeps looking for

         24  personnel, to make sure that no one was trapped in

         25  elevators that may have stopped service.
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          2                 We also did inspection of electrical

          3  service areas, because there may have been flooding

          4  or other types of damage that went as Con Edison

          5  re-energized the area, could have caused a problem.

          6                 We also provided building condition

          7  information on this collateral damage immediately to

          8  the Mayor's Office and to other agencies, through

          9  our participation at OEM's Emergency Operation

         10  Center. We established a temporary call center in 60

         11  Hudson that was through some donated telephone

         12  service that we got from the building to provide

         13  people with answers to questions about their

         14  buildings and structural safety.

         15                 And then we also did a lot of

         16  coordination with Fire Department, Police

         17  Department, Economic Development Corporation, as

         18  owners and businesses down in the area trying to get

         19  back into their buildings and locations, due access

         20  to merchandise, try to begin the cleaning process,

         21  that sort of thing.

         22                 We did a lot of information

         23  distribution as to which buildings were safe, which

         24  buildings would be allowed to have access and I'll

         25  get to that, some of that later in the presentation.
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          2                 These coordinations, the coordination

          3  with the other agencies, which I've talked about,

          4  has been tremendous, and I think our experience with

          5  the Mayor's Office of Emergency Management has been

          6  significant.

          7                 We've had staff mainly through our

          8  intergovernmental and community affairs staff and

          9  some of their inspection staff there since September

         10  11th on a 24/7 basis, many times two, three, four

         11  personnel to help answer questions and provide

         12  information where it is necessary.

         13                 We've been also providing building

         14  condition information to all the agencies working to

         15  restore and support reoccupancy in Lower Manhattan,

         16  including Con Edison, Department of Environmental

         17  Protection and Department of Design and

         18  Construction.

         19                 DCAS, which made a significant effort

         20  to get City agencies back on line immediately after,

         21  and the Department of Information Technology, and

         22  many of the miscellaneous agencies who were

         23  dislocated from their headquarters or offices in the

         24  downtown area and we're very curious to know about

         25  their buildings and when they might be able to
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          2  reoccupy them.

          3                 We also, with the Mayor's Office of

          4  Emergency Management, have and continue to support

          5  their plans for opening up the restricted areas,

          6  ensuring that the buildings that they're opening up

          7  are safe, and that any of the streets or byways are

          8  safe and free from any potential hazards from

          9  falling debris or anything like that.

         10                 We've been doing a lot of

         11  coordination as well with the Department of Design

         12  and Construction, which has the primary

         13  responsibility for the rescue recovery operations on

         14  the World Trade Center.

         15                 Initially we worked with the Design

         16  and Construction, their contractors and some of

         17  their donated services to do survey inspections,

         18  they have worked in consultation with us, eventually

         19  we were responsible for making the final

         20  determination, but they supported us in that.

         21                 We also worked with them to identify

         22  buildings where there was damage that required

         23  sidewalk sheds and netting, giving the restricted

         24  access in the area, it was necessary for DDC

         25  contractors to put up some of the sheds and netting
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          2  in the area, and we supported them and have defined

          3  buildings that needed that immediately and to remove

          4  any hazards that might have affected either rescue

          5  personnel or any pedestrian who may have been

          6  re-entering the area.

          7                 And we've also been doing

          8  consultations oversight for the World Trade Center

          9  rescue and recovery operation.

         10                 Just other efforts that we wanted to

         11  mention, are providing support for the Fire

         12  Department, and a hot line, which our Enforcement

         13  Division, which is located at 9 Metrotech in the

         14  Fire Department Headquarters now, provided support

         15  for the family hot line. And our lawyers from our

         16  Enforcement Unit and our Investigations and

         17  Discipline Unit volunteered also to support family

         18  members at the Family Assistance Center who were

         19  looking to need any consultation with regard to

         20  death certificates and that sort of thing.

         21                 Thirdly, I wanted to discuss how our

         22  agency operations, normal operations were affected,

         23  and -- sorry, I will just proceed without the -- I

         24  don't know.

         25                 First, I wanted to touch on four
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          2  things: how our operations were directly affected;

          3  what happened when our operations were relocated;

          4  what we did to reach out to the community, the

          5  population that we service; and what we've done to

          6  return to normal operations.

          7                 The first and foremost impact of the

          8  September 11th events was 60 Hudson, which

          9  immediately phone service was disrupted and no

         10  public access was allowed into 60 Hudson, this is

         11  about nine blocks from the World Trade Center event,

         12  and where our Manhattan Borough Office, our Central

         13  Inspection Units, our licenses and permit units and

         14  all of our executive staff and administrative staff

         15  are -- this personnel had to be immediately deployed

         16  to other boroughs and we needed to find some

         17  contingency for keeping these operations going.

         18                 Also, One Centre Street where our

         19  Bureau of Electrical Control was, there was no

         20  telephone service there, and the building was

         21  evacuated for fear of additional events, as well as

         22  restricted access to the public subsequently.

         23                 Our Investigations and Discipline

         24  Unit is located at 11 Park Place, which is a mere

         25  two blocks away from the site, that was evacuated,
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          2  and not reoccupied for some time.

          3                 Immediately our staff went into

          4  action to find a place for the operations of the

          5  agency. Many of the elements of our Y2K plan were

          6  implemented and were provided a resource for us to

          7  get the operations going again.

          8                 Temporarily our DOB staff, executive

          9  staff, was relocated to Queens, we started setting

         10  up a command center up there, until we could confirm

         11  that the 60 Hudson Street situation was stable.

         12                 Our Manhattan operations were

         13  relocated to all of the boroughs, a week or actually

         14  four days after September 11th we started accepting

         15  all Manhattan Borough filings in other boroughs so

         16  that we could continue our operations.

         17                 Staff was relocated to accommodate

         18  these filings. More than 60 percent of the normal

         19  volume of Manhattan was accepted and processed. The

         20  difference between the normal operations and this

         21  period was not due to the fact that we were not able

         22  to handle the capacity, but we think that many

         23  applicants in Manhattan waited to do their filing.

         24                 Our central operations were relocated

         25  throughout the boroughs as well. Our Brooklyn
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          2  offices absorbed the local law unit, central

          3  cashier, boiler, elevator personnel. The licensing

          4  staff was relocated to Brooklyn and Bronx.

          5                 BEC filings, Bureau of Electrical

          6  Control filings, were accepted in all the borough

          7  offices, which is one of the benefits to having the

          8  bureau located in all the boroughs.

          9                 So, despite the fact that the other

         10  borough offices were not directly affected, they

         11  were indirectly affected in terms of accommodating

         12  the staff and handling this volume from Manhattan.

         13                 This was accommodated through daily

         14  deliveries by our facilities and general services

         15  personnel, between the boroughs and so that all

         16  filings that were happening in the outer boroughs

         17  could be reviewed and processed appropriately.

         18                 This information, and how we were

         19  handling the situation, was immediately communicated

         20  through our web site on NYC.GOV, a temporary help

         21  line was established at 60 Hudson through these

         22  donated help lines. We did industry outreach, and we

         23  were constantly providing a consultation to owners

         24  and tenants in Lower Manhattan, and keeping these

         25  normal operations moving as much as possible.
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          2                 In order to return to normal

          3  operations, we began working to reestablish our

          4  telephone lines and our data lines, which were

          5  essential to the operations to the Borough Office

          6  and to the rest of operations that are housed in 60

          7  Hudson. This required our facilities unit and our

          8  MIS unit to coordinate with the Department of

          9  Information and Technology, which is provided with

         10  support.

         11                 We also had to develop a security

         12  plan in 69 Hudson. As you know, 60 Hudson is -- or

         13  you may know, 60 Hudson has some of the major

         14  telecom providers for Lower Manhattan, and it is a

         15  potential target that we needed to be conscious of,

         16  so we had to develop a security plan that

         17  accommodated both the normal public access that we

         18  have and make sure that those security concerns were

         19  addressed.

         20                 The Manhattan Borough Office was able

         21  to open right after -- at 60 Hudson, right after

         22  Columbus Day. As I said, they were still accepting

         23  filings and processing applications in the outer

         24  boroughs during -- between September 11th and

         25  October 9th, when 60 Hudson was opened.
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          2                 Right now we have about 90 percent

          3  operating capacity in terms of our data line that

          4  we're working on but we're still being able to

          5  process and respond to complaints and process

          6  applications in our normal time period and are

          7  improving those every day.

          8                 We did restart the initiatives that

          9  were underway prior to September 11th, and we are

         10  continuing with those initiatives during that middle

         11  October period.

         12                 Obviously the number of events

         13  subsequent to that have caused disruption as well,

         14  but we are continuing with our initiative and normal

         15  operations.

         16                 Next I wanted to talk about what we

         17  are doing to support reoccupancy of Lower Manhattan.

         18  Obviously everyone is very concerned about ensuring

         19  that happens in an expeditious manner. One of the

         20  ways that we supported that were through guidelines

         21  for reoccupancy, which were immediately available

         22  through the emergency, the Office of Emergency

         23  Management. These guidelines discussed all of the

         24  different types of things that needed to be done to

         25  buildings for them to be available for reoccupancy.
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          2  Under the leadership of the Deputy Mayor's Office,

          3  Deputy Mayor of Operations, and the Office of

          4  Emergency Management, this interagency coordination

          5  was possible. We supported the development of that,

          6  as well as the distribution of guidelines to

          7  interested parties and people who were wanting to

          8  get back into their buildings as soon as possible.

          9                 We also facilitated contact with the

         10  agencies people needed to get in touch with, and did

         11  do some monitoring and compliance, and continued to

         12  do monitoring and compliances as building owners,

         13  clean, and do construction on their buildings.

         14                 We are continuing to do safety and

         15  survey inspections. We maintain a database of

         16  building conditions that we are closely monitoring

         17  to make sure that all the buildings in the affected

         18  area are appropriately addressed and any steps that

         19  need to be taken to ensure safety are taken.

         20                 We have added additional emergency

         21  and after hour inspection units to ensure that any

         22  operations that are needed in the World Trade Center

         23  area, as well as any other emergencies that may

         24  happen Citywide are handled.

         25                 Finally, I wanted to talk about some
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          2  of the next steps that the Department of Buildings

          3  has taken to help rebuild in Lower Manhattan and

          4  help with the building process throughout the City.

          5                 In the first instance we are

          6  establishing, have not yet established, but will be

          7  establishing a Building Code Committee related to

          8  the events of September 11th. This will be a forum

          9  to accept review, industry comments regarding

         10  high-rate safety, emergency response, and make

         11  recommendations with regard to the code that should

         12  happen.

         13                 Our hope is that this will be a

         14  continuous review committee that can make these

         15  recommendations and continue the process of ensuring

         16  the code addresses any areas that may arise out of

         17  events such as this.

         18                 Secondly, and I'm pleased to hear

         19  that there was a vote this morning, is the adoption

         20  of an electrical code, we very much appreciate your

         21  support for that. We think this will help support

         22  the building process and the reconstruction process

         23  in Lower Manhattan, and in that it reflects the new

         24  technologies, materials and methodologies that are

         25  regularly used without requiring the Advisory Board
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          2  approval that is currently, as well as some

          3  additional enhancements with regard to enforcement

          4  fees and licensing that will be important to the

          5  industry.

          6                 Finally, what we're doing to

          7  facilitate the filing and approval is that we are

          8  trying to identify filings that are related to

          9  relocation of tenants or reconstruction of buildings

         10  and our borough staff is handling those

         11  expeditiously to ensure that people aren't put out

         12  in any way.

         13                 We are encouraging people to do

         14  self-certification and PC filing, which are programs

         15  that were initiatives that were up and running prior

         16  to September 11th and we've continued to expand

         17  those.

         18                 We do have information access on our

         19  web page through the Bids on the Web Program that we

         20  are hoping to expand. We have just received some

         21  approval to expand that, we're hoping that will

         22  facilitate the filing and approval process. And we

         23  are investigating also the process of remote filing

         24  of applications and plans.

         25                 We're beginning to develop scoping
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          2  documents and determine the best process for doing

          3  that. We think that the technology is at a point

          4  that we can begin that process in earnest and begin

          5  developing those technologies for the Department of

          6  Buildings.

          7                 So, that concludes my presentation.

          8  If you have any questions I would be happy to answer

          9  anything.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I was rather

         11  comprehensive and informative.  I think I lost my

         12  Committee.

         13                 In any event, let me ask you, did the

         14  Department have the capacity to meet all of these

         15  emergency situations? Or did you have to hire

         16  additional consultant-type per diem people or temps

         17  to carry out some of your functions?

         18                 MR. TOPPING: We didn't hire any

         19  additional temps or contract anybody else for our

         20  services.

         21                 The extraordinary efforts of the

         22  people at the Department of Buildings, really

         23  everybody responded with amazing efforts, people

         24  working 36 and 48 hour shifts, managers, and

         25  inspectors working round the clock to accomplish the
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          2  inspections and ensuring the safety of people

          3  downtown. So, we did not actually hire any

          4  additional per diem staff or didn't contract any of

          5  our services out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Were any of you

          7  in the building on September 11th at 60 Hudson?

          8                 MR. TOPPING: David and Robert were

          9  actually at 60 Hudson, as were most of our staff at

         10  that time. I was actually on vacation and had to

         11  come back.

         12                 I haven't taken that vacation yet,

         13  but obviously everyone was very affected by the

         14  events, and thankfully Department of Buildings

         15  didn't lose anybody directly, although many friends

         16  and loved ones were lost in the events, and our

         17  hearts go out to them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It was an

         19  extraordinarily catastrophic day for all of New

         20  York, particularly for those of you who were in the

         21  vicinity. Nine blocks is not a great distance when

         22  you consider the magnitude of the problem.

         23                 Are you in any way involved in air

         24  quality in the buildings or the HVACs?

         25                 MR. TOPPING: No, the Department does
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          2  regulate the installation of HVAC systems and we do

          3  monitor HVAC system, mechanicals are accessible for

          4  maintenance and that sort of thing, but we're not

          5  normally directly related to air quality.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In your

          7  inspections, how did you find the elevators in the

          8  vicinity and in the immediate vicinity? Were they

          9  able to expand or --

         10                 MR. TOPPING: We did do inspections to

         11  ensure that none of the mechanical portions of the

         12  elevators were affected by dust or debris.

         13                 We did not find that to be the case

         14  because most of those devices are encased. We are

         15  concerned about elevators in buildings that were

         16  structurally affected, and we're monitoring those

         17  situations to make sure that they are adequately

         18  repaired, if any damage has occurred. But thus far

         19  we haven't found any damage outside of the buildings

         20  that may have been structurally affected.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Insofar as

         22  buildings that were declared structurally defective,

         23  have any of them been given approval, the seal of

         24  approval for reoccupancy?

         25                 MR. TOPPING: To my knowledge, none of
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          2  the buildings that have been structurally affected

          3  have been given approval for reoccupancy.

          4                 We have been working with the

          5  Department of Design and Construction. We're

          6  required to support any remediation efforts that

          7  have happened there, and we have also been working

          8  diligently with the owners and owners of properties

          9  to ensure that they can get their contractor and

         10  construction staff in there in a safe manner. And,

         11  so, we anticipate that to happen very soon with

         12  regard to some of these properties, but to my

         13  knowledge, there are no properties that have been

         14  structurally affected that have been reoccupied.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And how many

         16  buildings are in the category that are currently

         17  structurally defective that can be with minimal or

         18  moderate to extensive rehabilitation can be made

         19  worthy of habitation?

         20                 MR. TOPPING: We know of eight

         21  buildings that were collapsed or partially collapsed

         22  that will probably require demolition. There were

         23  nine buildings that had significant structural

         24  damage that we had to either vacate or quarter off

         25  certain areas. Those are the buildings that we're
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          2  very concerned about the safety. And there were

          3  about 40 buildings, 45 buildings where there were

          4  safety concerns, either because of broken glass or

          5  superficial damage or some cleaning that needed to

          6  be done that we're monitoring as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As it relates to

          8  your relationship with the Fire Department and other

          9  emergency service agencies, are you coordinating

         10  with them, working with them as teams that you

         11  mentioned?

         12                 MR. TOPPING: We were coordinating

         13  from day one with certainly the Fire Department in

         14  immediate response to the events and through the

         15  Office of Emergency Management we've been

         16  coordinating with other agencies to ensure that

         17  either access to buildings where their concerns were

         18  monitored and people were re-entering those

         19  buildings in a safe manner, and then blocks and/or

         20  streets that were being reopened for reoccupancy

         21  were done in a safe manner and there were no

         22  concerns about building safety.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, it was

         24  quite, it is a tragic situation for New York City

         25  and in the area in general, and the Department of
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          2  Buildings I think conducted itself admirably, and I

          3  commend you and your colleagues for your response.

          4                 I want to thank you for your

          5  testimony.

          6                 MR. TOPPING: Thank you. And thank you

          7  for your support of the Department of Buildings

          8  throughout your tenure as chair. And also thank you

          9  for support for electrical code.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We may have

         11  possibly one or two more items to clear up before

         12  this Council expires.

         13                 MR. TOPPING: Very good. We would be

         14  happy to join you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All right, thank

         16  you.

         17                 The next agency will be New York City

         18  Housing Authority, and I see some of them in the

         19  room. Some I recognize, some I don't. So, gentlemen,

         20  if you will have a seat at the table, identify

         21  yourselves, we would be pleased to hear your

         22  testimony.

         23                 Sir, if you will identify yourself

         24  and your colleagues, we will be happy to entertain

         25  your testimony and presentations.
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          2                 MR. NEW: Good morning, Chairman

          3  Spigner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good morning,

          5  Mr. New.

          6                 MR. NEW: My name is Frank New, I'm

          7  the Deputy General Manager for Administration with

          8  the New York City Housing Authority.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Somebody adjust

         10  Mr. New's mic so that he can be more -- get a little

         11  more volume.

         12                 MR. NEW: How is this?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Better. Push it

         14  a little closer to you.

         15                 MR. NEW: Mr. Chairman, on my left is

         16  Hugh Spence, who is our Deputy General Manager for

         17  Community Operations, and on my right is Rowland

         18  Laedlain, who is our Assistant Deputy General

         19  Manager for Operations.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are these

         21  gentlemen new to the agency? I don't think I've had

         22  the pleasure of meeting either of them.

         23                 MR. NEW: No, they're not exactly new,

         24  however, they may be new to this process of the City

         25  Council. They will be more than happy to answer
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          2  whatever questions you may have later on.

          3                 If I may, Mr. Chairman, as you

          4  requested, our report this morning will focus mainly

          5  on the impact of the events of September the 11th,

          6  on the New York City Housing Authority, on its

          7  personnel and also on the residents of our

          8  developments.

          9                 The most severe impact was on NYCHA's

         10  central offices, housed in two facilities in Lower

         11  Manhattan, that's 250 Broadway, which is right

         12  across from City Hall, and also 90 Church Street,

         13  which is across the street from the site of the

         14  disaster on September the 11th, both of those

         15  buildings were evacuated.

         16                 We were not able to return to 250

         17  Broadway until ten days later, on the 21st of

         18  September. We have not yet returned to 90 Church

         19  Street, and we do not know when we'll be able to do

         20  so because the serious damage to the interior in its

         21  proximity to the World Trade Center area.

         22                 These two facilities housed

         23  approximately 3,000 of our employees, about 1,900

         24  NYCHA people worked in 90 Church, have been

         25  relocated for the foreseeable future. And because of
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          2  the loss of computers and other automated systems

          3  for several weeks following the attack, we were

          4  forced to return to manual processes related to rent

          5  collection, applicant replacement, tracking

          6  apartments, processing and tracking work tickets and

          7  processing contractors' and vendor payments. And

          8  additional Central Office staff provided a variety

          9  of essential administrative support services to a

         10  few operations, and these were, of course, also

         11  affected.

         12                 However, at no time was there an

         13  interruption of service to the residents of our

         14  developments. From September 11th to the 21st, part

         15  of NYCHA's Central Office staff worked out of our

         16  Long Island City facility with a minimum of

         17  resources and a maximum of cooperation.

         18                 Several departments from 90 Church

         19  have now been relocated to 250 Broadway, filling the

         20  space there beyond capacity, and other departments

         21  are now working out of temporary offices at 95th

         22  Avenue in Manhattan, and 350 Livingston Street in

         23  Brooklyn, and Ash Street in Brooklyn, as well as our

         24  facility out in Long Island City.

         25                 Even after we returned to 250
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          2  Broadway, the lack of telephone service made it

          3  necessary for all departments to share cell phones

          4  for several weeks thereafter, and NYCHA's work has

          5  made these adjustments smoothly, despite the lack of

          6  access to files, computers and personal belongings

          7  left behind at 90 Church Street.

          8                 The condition of 90 Church Street,

          9  according to the City Department of Buildings, who

         10  just left here, and the Department of Design and

         11  Construction, is that it is structurally sound, but

         12  the building's interior will require extensive

         13  clean-up and reconstruction.

         14                 Because the building is adjacent to

         15  Ground Zero, we have had very limited access to it

         16  and we expect this restriction to continue for quite

         17  some time.

         18                 In the interim NYCHA and the

         19  building's management have retained certified

         20  industrial hygienists to conduct extensive

         21  environmental testing. We're working with the

         22  consultants and building managers to establish a

         23  protocol for the proper cleaning of the building and

         24  its contents, including equipment, furniture and

         25  personal property.
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          2                 We're also working closely with the

          3  Buildings management to establish a recovery plan.

          4  While we remain committed to the recovery and

          5  preservation of all work-related equipment and

          6  files, our first priority remains the safety of

          7  NYCHA's staff, therefore, the environmental testing

          8  process and the necessary cleaning will be completed

          9  before authorization is granted for the removal of

         10  any materials and equipment.

         11                 Unfortunately, there may be

         12  circumstances where materials and equipment will be

         13  discarded because they cannot be cleaned to

         14  appropriate safety levels.

         15                 But NYCHA was so close and so

         16  directly involved in the events of September 11th,

         17  we were also quick to respond to the emergency.

         18                 NYCHA employees at every level were

         19  immediately rushed into service. We mobilized

         20  rapidly and NYCHA personnel and equipment were among

         21  the first on the scene within moments after the

         22  attack, providing vehicles, equipment, and emergency

         23  services to assist with the rescue and recovery

         24  effort.

         25                 Over 350 NYCHA employees and 150
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          2  NYCHA trucks converge at or near the World Trade

          3  Center from all parts of the City. Our emergency

          4  command bus was deployed on Houston Street and Sixth

          5  Avenue from day one, manned by teams of employees 24

          6  hours a day.

          7                 We were part of the Mayor's

          8  Interagency Team and rescue and recovery operations,

          9  working with the Mayor's Office, the Office of

         10  Emergency Management, the Police, Fire, and

         11  Sanitation Departments, the Department of

         12  Environmental Protection and the Department of

         13  Buildings.

         14                 We worked with the State and federal

         15  agencies, as well. The State Emergency Management

         16  Office, the State police and national guard, the

         17  Federal Emergency Management Agency and the

         18  Department of Housing and Urban Development.

         19                 We promptly make contact with all

         20  elected officials, to be sure that they could get in

         21  touch with us at temporary phone numbers in Long

         22  Island City. In and around Ground Zero, NYCHA

         23  electricians set up emergency lighting, NYCHA

         24  carpenters built enclosures for high voltage wiring

         25  and NYCHA's drivers improves operated our front-end
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          2  loaders, Bobcats and dump trucks, helping to clear

          3  debris and maintain excess to the disaster area.

          4                 Our Materials Management Department,

          5  along with caretakers, managers, skilled trades,

          6  administrator and directors, were all involved,

          7  supplying shovels, helmets, tools, whatever was

          8  thoughtful. We're still providing supplies even

          9  today.

         10                 Until midnight on the 12th of

         11  September, our managers in the field have 25 to

         12  3,000 NYCHA people on alert in staging areas at our

         13  developments in case they were needed.

         14                 Our community center on the Lower

         15  East side stood ready to serve in any way necessary.

         16  Rutgers Community Center stayed open for 24 hours

         17  for four days, as staging areas for police personnel

         18  and our own staff, providing sleeping accommodations

         19  and refreshments.

         20                 Campos Plaza Community Center was

         21  opened around the clock on the first day, and Baruch

         22  Houses provided the same service on the 13th of

         23  September.

         24                 Our tenant association facility, Wald

         25  Houses on Avenue D was open 24 hours a day for
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          2  several days to accommodate rescue and recovery

          3  workers.

          4                 Our personnel served at the Emergency

          5  Command Center on Pier 92 around the clock seven

          6  days a week, NYCHA personnel are still there working

          7  with OEM.

          8                 And as I mentioned before, we

          9  maintained essential services in NYCHA developments

         10  all the while. In fact, after working through the

         11  immediate crisis of the 11th, NYCHA personnel were

         12  back to work at their regular duty the next morning.

         13                 The impact on our residents on a

         14  practical level was felt on only four out of the 346

         15  NYCHA developments. These four were in Lower

         16  Manhattan, which experienced the loss of

         17  telecommunications.

         18                 However, working with Verizon we

         19  installed the emergency phone banks for those

         20  residents and cell phones were distributed to

         21  resident leaders and those with special needs. Most

         22  telephone service has now been restored, although we

         23  continue to experience some difficulty.

         24                 NYCHA's social services were on the

         25  scene knocking on every door to calm fears and be
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          2  sure that all was well, especially with the elderly

          3  and the frail.

          4                 Our Department of Community

          5  Operations, which is under the direction of Mr.

          6  Spence, sitting to my left, reached out to all

          7  resident leaders to learn of any losses of family

          8  members and to account for all residents. Likewise,

          9  we made sure that all of our employees were

         10  accounted for.

         11                 We also provided counseling services

         12  in partnership with Safe Horizon to our employees,

         13  many of whom were physically involved in the attack

         14  and the collapse of the towers, and to our

         15  residents. We were in contact with all of the

         16  unions, as well.

         17                 We are still providing counseling

         18  services for staff and residents making referrals to

         19  other services when it's necessary.

         20                 In the aftermath of these events, we

         21  are grateful to the U.S. Department of Housing and

         22  Urban Development.

         23                 In fact, HUD Secretary Mel. R.

         24  Martinez visited NYCHA on the 2nd of November for a

         25  firsthand look at Ground Zero and at 90 Church
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          2  Street.

          3                 HUD has granted NYCHA time extensions

          4  on some deadlines, and waivers of certain

          5  requirements because of the attacks.

          6                 HUD's support is much appreciated.

          7                 But before I conclude, please permit

          8  me to again say that throughout this crisis and the

          9  demands made on our human and material resources,

         10  NYCHA never failed to deliver the services our

         11  residents expect and deserve.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

         14  New, for a comprehensive report on the activities of

         15  NYCHA during this crisis, which has affected all New

         16  Yorkers.

         17                 The agency, from your report, has

         18  clearly conducted itself in a very appropriate way,

         19  and has gone a long ways toward reducing, where

         20  possible, the stress and dislocation and disruption

         21  in the lives of so many New Yorkers.

         22                 Due to the tragedy of September the

         23  11th, have you experienced any increase for

         24  emergency housing, if that would be the agency to

         25  come to, or you are not involved at that level of
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          2  providing houses Section 8 or otherwise?

          3                 MR. NEW: Mr. Chair, I'm not aware of

          4  any large amount of requests for emergency housing,

          5  but I'm sure there are some specific cases that have

          6  been --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Your mic isn't

          8  -- is your mic on, sir?

          9                 MR. NEW: Yes, it is.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         11                 MR. NEW: I say I'm not aware of the

         12  large request of emergency housing; however, I'm

         13  sure there are some specific cases that have been

         14  asked of the Authority.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Inasfar as the

         16  expenses of those 24 hour seven day a week, has your

         17  agency been able to absorb those costs?

         18                 MR. NEW: Well, one of the things that

         19  we're doing rather carefully is to make sure that we

         20  kept record of all the expenses that's related to

         21  this particular disaster, and hopefully --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There will come

         23  a time --

         24                 MR. NEW: We will be able to recover a

         25  cost, from whether it's FEMA or HUD, or other
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          2  sources.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In mid-October

          4  HUD announced they will give $10 million for NYCHA

          5  to help defer costs related to September the 11th.

          6                 MR. NEW: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Have you

          8  received those funds?

          9                 MR. NEW: We have received $10 million

         10  from HUD just recently, and that really is to cover

         11  facilities that we're currently renting on a

         12  temporary basis, which is located on Fifth Avenue,

         13  in order for us to accommodate all of our staff

         14  members who have been dislocated from 90 Church

         15  Street.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All right. Thank

         17  you, Mr. New.

         18                 Mr. New, we have been looking to your

         19  agency for awhile for response from a letter,

         20  looking for a response to a letter regarding

         21  elevators, that's dated September the 18th, 2000.

         22  This is November 2001, and we have yet to receive a

         23  response. Could I request that you convey back to

         24  your Chairman, currently a new one, this was

         25  addressed to Paul Graziano, and it reads: "As part
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          2  of the Council's ongoing review of not only the

          3  safety initiative, I am writing to request copies of

          4  the following documents:

          5                 - any and all accident reports

          6  prepared by NYCHA, including but not limited to the

          7  report of accidents, public liability forms, the

          8  Department of Buildings, or any other agency for the

          9  accidents that occurred on September the 8th, 2000,

         10  at 1715 Bruckner Boulevard in the Bronx.

         11                 - all elevator accident reports

         12  prepared by NYCHA, included but not limited to the

         13  report of accidents, public liability forms, the

         14  Department of Buildings or any other agency during

         15  the past two years regarding the subject device.

         16                 - a computer-generated report of all

         17  accidents that have occurred in NYCHA buildings, by

         18  NYCHA developments, from January the 1st, 1999 to

         19  date.

         20                 - all inspection and test reports for

         21  the past two years on subject devices.

         22                 - all complaint reports for the past

         23  two years regarding the subject devices."

         24                 So, again, this was sent to Mr.

         25  Graziano, September the 18th, and the closing
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          2  sentence says, "Thank you for your prompt attention

          3  to this matter".

          4                 Considering the date of the request,

          5  I think that you have to look fresh at this request

          6  and do what's necessary to get a response hopefully

          7  before I leave.

          8                 MR. NEW: Mr. Chairman, I'll be glad

          9  to look into it, and at the same time I will be

         10  happy to remind Mr. Graziano, who is now the Housing

         11  Director over at Baltimore, that from now on letters

         12  ought to be answered promptly.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, I

         14  understand that.

         15                 Okay.

         16                 MR. NEW: But I'll be glad to bring

         17  that to our Chairman's attention and we certainly

         18  would try to respond as quickly as possible.

         19                 Mike, you have a question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: No, I just

         21  want to make a statement overall.

         22                 There's been a lot of questions and

         23  there hasn't been many answers, but that's okay.

         24  Overall we will eventually find out what we want to

         25  find out.
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          2                 I want to take a positive slant with

          3  this, if you will, and applaud the efforts of NYCHA

          4  and DOB and HPD, responding to September 11th in the

          5  crisis that we went through, and, of course, the

          6  Mayor for his tremendous leadership, and everybody

          7  followed suit with that. So, there is leadership

          8  from the top, and that has not been addressed, so I

          9  just wanted to put that on the record, as well. It

         10  was a very trying time, and everybody was working I

         11  know, everybody was working 24/7, all the agencies

         12  were in effect, and I thank you for that.

         13                 MR. NEW: Thank you, Council member.

         14  We're very, very proud of our employees who

         15  participated in this disaster recovery and worked

         16  very, very hard, and will continue to do so.

         17                 However, Mr. Chairman, I wanted to

         18  say on behalf of Chairman Hernandez, that it has

         19  been extremely kind on your part and your Committee

         20  towards the New York City Housing Authority over the

         21  years and we appreciate it very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I

         23  appreciated working with you, and please bring my

         24  best to the Chairman, but I need a response to this

         25  letter before I go.
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          2                 MR. NEW: Yes, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, we will --

          4  let's recess this meeting, because even though you

          5  are going to contact Mr. Graziano in Baltimore, it's

          6  the guy that's sitting there now --

          7                 MR. NEW: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If you want me

          9  to redress a new letter, we can do that.

         10                 MR. NEW: No, sir, I don't think it's

         11  necessary. We will be glad to --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If you believe

         13  that this is no longer relevant.

         14                 MR. NEW: Not at all. We will be glad

         15  to respond.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, let's just

         17  recess this meeting with this understanding that

         18  this outstanding matter has to be taken care of and

         19  responded to.

         20                 This meeting is adjourned.

         21                 MR. NEW: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 (Hearing recessed at 12:15 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 16th day of November 2001.
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         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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